



Legislation Text

File #: Res 0504-2018, Version: *

THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NEW YORK
RESOLUTION NO. 504

Resolution approving with modifications the decision of the City Planning Commission on ULURP No. C 180204(A) ZMM, a Zoning Map amendment (L.U. No. 135).

By Council Members Salamanca and Moya

WHEREAS, the City Planning Commission filed with the Council on June 25, 2018 its decision dated June 25, 2018 (the "Decision"), on the application submitted by the New York City Economic Development Corporation, pursuant to Sections 197-c and 201 of the New York City Charter, for an amendment of the Zoning Map, Section Nos. 1b, 1d, 3a and 3c, by eliminating from within an existing R7-2 District a C1-3, C1-4 Districts; changing from an R7-2, C4-4, C8-3, M1-1 Districts to an R7A District; changing from a C8-3 District to an R7D District; changing from an M1-1, M3-1 Districts to an R8 District; changing from an R7-2, M1-1, M3-1 Districts to an R8A District; changing from an M1-1, M3-1 Districts to an R9A District; changing from a C8-3 District to a C4-4A District; changing from an R7-2, C4-4, C8-3 Districts to a C4-4D District; changing from an R7-2, C4-4 Districts to a C4-5D District; changing from an M1-1, M2-1, M3-1 Districts to a C6-2 District; changing from a C8-4 District to a C6-2A District; changing from an M2-1, M3-1 Districts to an M1-4 District; changing from an M3-1 District to an M2-4 District; changing from an M1-1 District to an M1-5, M1-4/R7A, M1-4/R9A Districts; establishing within a proposed R7A, R7D, R8, R8A, R9A Districts a C2-4 District; and establishing a Special Inwood District (IN), which in conjunction with the related actions would facilitate a series of land use actions, including a comprehensive rezoning plan, to advance the goals of the Mayor's *Housing New York: A Five-Borough, Ten-year Plan* and to begin implementation of the Inwood NYC Action Plan, a comprehensive planning effort aimed at supporting growth and vitality by fostering a vibrant mix of uses, public access to the waterfront and the preservation of areas with an existing strong built context in the Inwood neighborhood of Manhattan, Community District 12, (ULURP No. C 180204(A) ZMM), Community District 12, Borough of Manhattan (the "Application");

WHEREAS, the Application is related to applications N 180205(A) ZRM (L.U. No. 136), a zoning text amendment, as modified; C 180206 PPM (L.U. No. 137), a disposition of City-owned property; C 180207 PQM (L.U. No. 138), an acquisition of a condominium unit in a future development and of property for public access easements and to rationalize lot boundaries; C 180208 HAM (L.U. No. 139), an urban Development Action Area Project (UDAAP) designation and project approval and the disposition of City-owned property; and C 180073 MMM (L.U. No. 140), a city map amendment to eliminate portions of streets in the Sherman Creek subarea;

WHEREAS, the Decision is subject to review and action by the Council pursuant to Section 197-d(b)(1) of the City Charter;

WHEREAS, upon due notice, the Council held a public hearing on the Decision and Application on July 10, 2018;

WHEREAS, the Council has considered the land use and environmental implications and other policy issues relating to the Decision and Application; and

WHEREAS, the Council has considered the relevant environmental issues, including the positive declaration (CEQR No. 17DME007M) issued on August 11, 2017 and a Final Environmental Impact Statement (FEIS) for which a Notice of Completion was issued on June 14, 2018 which included an (E) designation to avoid the potential significant adverse impacts related to hazardous materials, air quality and noise (E-459) and the Technical Memoranda dated June 22, 2018 and August 3, 2018 (the “Technical Memoranda”).

RESOLVED:

Having considered the FEIS and the Technical Memoranda, with respect to the Decision and Application, the Council finds that:

- (1) The FEIS meets the requirements of 6 N.Y.C.R.R. Part 617;
- (2) Consistent with social, economic and other essential considerations from among the reasonable alternatives available, the action is one which avoids or minimizes adverse environmental impacts to the maximum extent practicable;
- (3) The adverse environmental impacts identified in the FEIS will be minimized or avoided to the maximum extent practicable by incorporating, as conditions to the approval, those project components related to the environmental and mitigation measures that were identified as practicable; and
- (4) The Decision, together with the FEIS and the Technical Memoranda constitute the written statement of facts, and of social, economic and other factors and standards that form the basis of this determination, pursuant to 6 N.Y.C.R.R. §617.11(d).

Pursuant to Sections 197-d and 200 of the City Charter and on the basis of the Decision and Application, and based on the environmental determination and consideration described in the report, C 180204 (A) ZMM, incorporated by reference herein, the Council approves the Decision of the City Planning Commission with the following modifications:

The Zoning Resolution of the City of New York, effective as of December 15, 1961, and as subsequently amended, is further amended by changing the Zoning Map, Section Nos. 1b, 1d, 3a and 3c:

Matter underlined is new, added by the City Council;

Matter ~~struck-out~~ is deleted by the City Council;

1. eliminating from within an existing R7-2 District a C1-3 District bounded by West 207th Street, a line 100 feet northwesterly of Ninth Avenue, West 206th Street, and a line 100 feet southeasterly of Tenth Avenue;
2. eliminating from within an existing R7-2 District a C1-4 District bounded by:
 - a. Payson Avenue, a line 100 feet ~~northwesterly~~ northeasterly of Dyckman Street, a line 100 feet

northwesterly of Broadway, West 204th Street, Broadway, Academy Street, a line 100 feet southeasterly of Broadway, a line 200 feet northeasterly of Dyckman Street, Broadway, and Dyckman Street;

- b. Cooper Street, a line 150 feet northeasterly of 207th Street, a line 100 feet northwesterly of Broadway, Isham Street, Broadway, West 213th Street, a line 100 feet southeasterly of Broadway, West 211th Street, Isham Street, a line 100 feet southeasterly of Broadway, a line 150 feet northeasterly of West 207th Street, Tenth Avenue, a line 100 feet southwestly of West 207th Street, Broadway, the northeasterly boundary line of a Park (Dyckman House Park), a line midway between Cooper Street and Broadway, and a line 100 feet southwestly of West 207th Street;
 - c. a line 100 feet northwesterly of Broadway, West 215th Street, Broadway, and a northeasterly boundary line of a Park;
 - d. a line 100 feet northwesterly of Sherman Avenue, a line midway between Dyckman Street and Thayer Street, a line 100 feet southeasterly of Sherman Avenue, ~~Nagle Avenue~~, and Thayer Street;
 - e. a line 100 feet northwesterly of Nagle Avenue, a line midway between Dyckman Street and Thayer Street, ~~Sherman Avenue~~ Nagle Avenue, and Thayer Street;
 - f. Sherman Avenue, West 204th Street, a line 100 feet southeasterly of Sherman Avenue, and Academy Street; and
 - g. Tenth Avenue, a line midway between West 205th Street and West 206th Street, a line 100 feet southeasterly of Tenth Avenue, and a line midway between West 203rd Street and West 204th Street;
3. changing from an R7-2 District to an R7A District property bounded by:
- a. ~~Staff Street, a line 100 feet southwestly of Dyckman Street, Seaman Avenue, and Riverside Drive;~~
 - ba. ~~the northeasterly centerline prolongation of Staff Street, the southwestly and southeasterly boundary lines of a Park (Inwood Hill Park) and its southwestly prolongation, the southeasterly boundary lines of a Park (Isham Park) and its north easterly prolongation, West 218th Street, a line 125 feet northwesterly of Broadway, West 215th Street, Broadway, West 213th Street, a line 100 feet northwesterly of Tenth Avenue, Sherman Avenue, Isham Street, a line 100 feet southeasterly of Sherman Avenue, a line 150 feet northeasterly of West 207th Street, a line 150 feet southeasterly of Sherman Avenue, a line 100 feet northeasterly of West 207th Street, a line 125 feet northwesterly of Broadway, West 207th Street, a line 100 feet southeasterly of Cooper Street, a line 100 feet northeasterly of West 204th Street, a northwesterly boundary line of a Park (Dyckman House Park) and its southwestly prolongation, West 204th Street, a line 100 feet southeasterly of Cooper Street, Academy Street, a line 125 feet northwesterly of Broadway, and Dyckman Street;~~
 - eb. Broadway, a line midway between Dyckman Street and Thayer Street, Nagle Avenue, and

Thayer Street;

- dc. a line midway between Vermilyea Avenue and Broadway, a line 100 feet southwesterly of West 207th Street, Tenth Avenue, Nagle Avenue, and a line 200 feet northeasterly of Dyckman Street; and
 - ed. a line 100 feet southeasterly of Tenth Avenue, West 206th Street, a line 100 feet northwesterly of Ninth Avenue, and a line midway between West 203rd Street and West 204th Street;
4. changing from a C4-4 District to an R7A District property bounded by a line midway between Broadway and Vermilyea Avenue, a line 200 feet northeasterly of Dyckman Street, Nagle Avenue, and a line 100 feet northeasterly of Dyckman Street;
 5. changing from a C8-3 District to an R7A District property bounded by:
 - a. a line 100 feet northwesterly of Tenth Avenue, a line 300 feet northeasterly of Isham Street, and Sherman Avenue;
 - b. a line 125 feet northwesterly of Broadway, West 218th Street, a line midway between Park Terrace East and Broadway, a line and West 215th Street; and
 - c. a line 100 feet southeasterly of Sherman Avenue, Isham Street, a line 150 feet southeasterly of Sherman Avenue, and a line 150 feet northeasterly of West 207th Street;
 6. changing from an M1-1 District to an R7A District property bounded by a line 100 feet southeasterly of Tenth Avenue, a line midway between West 203rd Street and West 204th Street, a line 100 feet northwesterly of Ninth Avenue, and West 203rd Street;
 7. changing from a C8-3 District to an R7D District property bounded by a line 100 feet northwesterly of Broadway, West 218th Street, Broadway, and West 215th Street;
 8. changing from an M1-1 District to an R8 District property bounded by the northeasterly street line of former West 208th Street*, the U.S. Pierhead and Bulkhead Line, West 207th Street, and a line 100 feet southeasterly of Ninth Avenue;
 9. changing from an M3-1 District to an R8 District property bounded by:
 - a. West 207th Street, the U.S. Pierhead and Bulkhead Line, West 206th Street, and a line 100 feet southeasterly of Ninth Avenue; and
 - b. West 205th Street, the U.S. Pierhead and Bulkhead Line, West 204th Street, and Ninth Avenue;
 10. changing from an R7-2 District to an R8A District property bounded by ~~Post Avenue~~, ~~a line 100 feet northeasterly of West 207th Street~~, ~~Tenth Avenue~~, West 207th Street, a line 100 feet northwesterly of Ninth Avenue, West 206th Street, a line 100 feet southeasterly of Tenth Avenue, a line midway between West 203rd Street and West 204th Street, and Tenth Avenue, ~~and a line 100 feet southwesterly of West 207th Street~~;

11. changing from an M1-1 District to an R8A District property bounded by:
 - a. Tenth Avenue, a line midway between West 203rd Street and West 204th Street, a line 100 feet southeasterly of Tenth Avenue, and West 203rd Street;
 - b. a line 100 feet northwesterly of Ninth Avenue, West 206th Street, Ninth Avenue, and West 203rd Street; and
 - c. a line passing through a point at angle 35 degrees to the northeasterly street line of West 207th Street distant 180 feet southeasterly (as measured along the street line) from the point of intersection of the northeasterly street line of West 207th Street and the southeasterly street line of Tenth Avenue, a line 100 feet northwesterly of Ninth Avenue, West 207th Street, and a line 180 feet southeasterly of Tenth Avenue;
12. changing from an M3-1 District to an R8A District property bounded by Ninth Avenue, West 206th Street, a line 100 feet southeasterly of Ninth Avenue, and West 205th Street;
13. changing from an M1-1 District to an R9A District property bounded by a line 100 feet northwesterly of Ninth Avenue, a line 100 feet northeasterly of West 207th Street, Ninth Avenue, the northeasterly Street line of former West 208th Street*, a line 100 feet southeasterly of Ninth Avenue, West 207th Street , Ninth Avenue, and West 206th Street;
14. changing from an M3-1 District to an R9A District property bounded by Ninth Avenue, West 207th Street, a line 100 feet southeasterly of Ninth Avenue, and West 206th Street;
- ~~15. changing from a C8-3 District to a C4-4A District property bounded by Staff Street, Dyckman Street, Seaman Avenue, and a line 100 feet southwesterly of Dyckman Street;~~
- ~~16~~15. changing from an R7-2 District to a C4-4D District property bounded by:
 - a. ~~a line 125 feet northwesterly of Broadway, Cumming Street, Broadway, a line 150 feet southwesterly of Academy Street, a line midway between Vermilyea Avenue and Broadway, and a line 200 feet northeasterly of Dyckman Street, Broadway, and Dyckman Street; and~~
 - b. ~~a line 100 feet southeasterly of Cooper Street, West 207th Street, a line 125 feet northwesterly of Broadway, a line 100 feet northeasterly of West 207th Street, a line midway between Broadway and Vermilyea Avenue and its northeasterly prolongation, and a line 100 feet southwesterly of West 207th Street; and~~
 - eb. a line 150 feet southeasterly of Sherman Avenue, a line 150 feet northeasterly of West 207th Street, Tenth Avenue, a line 100 feet southwesterly of West 207th Street, Post Avenue, and a line 100 feet northeasterly of West 207th Street;
- ~~17~~16. changing from a C4-4 District to a C4-4D District property bounded by:
 - a: ~~Broadway, a line 200 feet northeasterly of Dyckman Street, a line midway between Vermilyea Avenue and Broadway, and Dyckman Street; and a line midway between Thayer Street and Dyckman Street; and~~
 - b. ~~a line midway between Post Avenue and Nagle Avenue and its southwesterly prolongation, a line 100 feet northeasterly of Dyckman Street, Nagle Avenue, and a line midway between Thayer Street and Dyckman Avenue;~~

~~1817.~~ changing from a C8-3 District to a C4-4D District property bounded by:

- a. Broadway, West 218th Street, Tenth Avenue, and West 214th 215th Street; and
- b. a line 100 feet northwesterly of Tenth Avenue, West 213th Street, Tenth Avenue, a line 150 feet northeasterly of West 207th Street, a line 150 feet southeasterly of Sherman Avenue, Isham Street, Sherman Avenue, and a line 300 feet northeasterly of Isham Street;

~~19.~~ changing from an R7-2 District to a C4-5D District property bounded by:

- a. a line 100 feet northwesterly of Broadway, Academy Street, a line 100 feet southeasterly of Cooper Street, West 204th Street, the northwesterly boundary lines of a Park (Dyckman House Park), a line 100 feet southeasterly of Cooper Street, a line 100 feet southwesterly of West 207th Street, a line midway between Broadway and Vermilyea Avenue, a line 150 feet southwesterly of Academy Street, Broadway, and Cumming Street; and
- b. a line midway between Broadway and Vermilyea Avenue, a line 100 feet northeasterly of West 207th Street, Post Avenue, and a line 100 feet southwesterly of West 207th Street;

~~20.~~ changing from a C4-4 District to a C4-5D District property bounded by a line midway between Vermilyea Avenue and Broadway and its southwesterly prolongation, a line 100 feet northeasterly of Dyckman Street, a line midway between Post Avenue and Nagle Avenue and its southwesterly prolongation, and a line midway between Thayer Street and Dyckman Street;

18. changing from a C8-3 District to a C4-5D District property bounded by Broadway, West 215th Street, Tenth Avenue, and West 214th Street;

2119. changing from an M1-1 District to a C6-2 District property bounded by Broadway, a line midway between West 218th Street and West 219th Street, a line 100 feet northwesterly of Ninth Avenue, West 219th Street, Ninth Avenue, and West 218th Street;

2220. changing from an M2-1 District to a C6-2 District property bounded by Ninth Avenue, the southeasterly centerline prolongation of West 218th Street, the U.S. Pierhead and Bulkhead Line, and the southeasterly prolongation of a line 22 feet northeasterly of the southwesterly street line of West 218th Street;

2321. changing from an M3-1 District to a C6-2 District property bounded by Ninth Avenue, the southeasterly centerline prolongation of West 220th Street, a line 110 feet southeasterly of Ninth Avenue, a line 50 feet southwesterly of the southeasterly centerline prolongation of West 220th Street, the U.S. Pierhead and Bulkhead Line, and the southeasterly centerline prolongation of West 118th Street;

2422. changing from a C8-4 District to a C6-2A District property bounded by Broadway, West 214th Street, Tenth Avenue, and West 213th Street;

2523. changing from an M2-1 District to an M1-4 District property bounded by Broadway, the U.S. Pierhead and Bulkhead Line, the southeasterly centerline prolongation of West 220th Street, and Ninth Avenue;

2624. changing from an M3-1 District to an M1-4 District property bounded by the southeasterly centerline

prolongation of West 220th Street, the U.S. Pierhead and Bulkhead Line, a line 50 feet southwesterly of the southeasterly centerline prolongation of West 220th Street, and a line 110 feet southeasterly of Ninth Avenue;

~~2725~~. changing from an M1-1 District to an M1-5 District property bounded by Broadway, Ninth Avenue, West 219th Street, a line 100 feet northwesterly of Ninth Avenue, and a line midway between West 218th Street and West 219th Street;

~~2826~~. changing from an M3-1 District to an M2-4 District property bounded by Ninth Avenue, West 204th Street, the U.S. Pierhead and Bulkhead Line, and West 202nd Street;

~~2927~~. changing from an M1-1 District to an M1-4/R7A District property bounded by a line 100 feet southeasterly of Tenth Avenue, West 203rd Street, a line 300 feet southeasterly of Tenth Avenue, and West 202nd Street;

~~3028~~. changing from an M1-1 District to an M1-4/R9A District property bounded by Tenth Avenue, West 203rd Street, a line 100 feet southeasterly of Tenth Avenue, West 202nd Street, a line 150 feet southeasterly of Tenth Avenue, and West 201st Street;

~~29~~. establishing within an existing R7-2 District a C2-4 District bounded by a line 125 feet northwesterly of Broadway, Academy Street, a line 100 feet southeasterly of Cooper Street, West 204th Street, Broadway, Academy Street, a line 100 feet southeasterly of Broadway, a line 100 feet southwesterly of West 207th Street, Broadway, a line 175 feet northeasterly of West 204th Street, a line 100 feet southeasterly of Cooper Street, West 207th Street, a line 125 feet northwesterly of Broadway, a line 100 feet northeasterly of West 207th Street, Post Avenue, a line 100 feet southwesterly of West 207th Street, a line midway between Vermilyea Avenue and Broadway, a line 150 feet southwesterly of Academy Street, Broadway, and Dyckman Street;

~~3130~~. establishing within a proposed R7A District a C2-4 District bounded by:

a. Payson Avenue, a line 100 feet northeasterly of Dyckman Street, a line 125 feet northwesterly of Broadway, and Dyckman Street;

b. a line 100 feet northwesterly of Sherman Avenue, a line midway between Thayer Street and Dyckman Street, a line 100 feet southeasterly of Sherman Avenue, and Thayer Street;

c. a line 100 feet northwesterly of Nagle Avenue, a line midway between Thayer Street and Dyckman Street, Nagle Avenue, and Thayer Street;

d. a line 100 feet northwesterly of Sherman Avenue, a line 250 feet northeasterly of Dyckman Street, a line 100 feet southeasterly of Sherman Avenue, and a line 100 feet northeasterly of Dyckman Street;

e. Vermilyea Avenue, Academy Street, a line 100 feet northwesterly of Vermilyea Avenue, a line 100 feet northeasterly of Academy Street, a line 100 feet southeasterly of Vermilyea Avenue, and a line 100 feet southwesterly of Academy Street;

- f. a line 100 feet northwesterly of Sherman Avenue, a line 100 feet northeasterly of Academy Street, Sherman Avenue, a line 100 feet southwesterly of West 204th Street, a line 100 feet northwesterly of Sherman Avenue, West 204th Street, Sherman Avenue, a line 100 feet southwesterly of West 207th Street, a line 100 feet southeasterly of Sherman Avenue, and Academy Street;
 - g. a line 100 feet northwesterly of Post Avenue, a line 100 feet northeasterly of West 204th Street, Post Avenue, and West 204th Street;
 - h. a line 100 feet northwesterly of Nagle Avenue, Academy Street, Nagle Avenue, and a line 100 feet southwesterly of Academy Street;
 - i. Cooper Street, a line 150 feet northeasterly of West 207th Street, a line 100 feet northwesterly of Broadway, a line 100 feet northeasterly of Isham Street, Broadway, West 213th Street, a line 100 feet southeasterly of Broadway, West 211th Street, Broadway, Isham Street, a line 100 feet southeasterly of Broadway, a line 150 feet northeasterly of West 207th Street, a line 100 feet northwesterly of Sherman Avenue, a line 100 feet southwesterly of Isham Street, Sherman Avenue, Isham Street, a line 100 feet southeasterly of Sherman Avenue, a line 150 feet northeasterly of West 207th Street, a line 150 feet southeasterly of Sherman Avenue, a line 100 feet northeasterly of West 207th Street, a line 125 feet northwesterly of Broadway, West 207th Street, a line 100 feet southeasterly of Cooper Street, and a line 100 feet southwesterly of West 207th Street;
 - j. a line 100 feet northwesterly of Sherman Avenue, a line 175 feet northeasterly of Isham Street, Sherman Avenue, and Isham Street;
 - k. a line 100 feet northwesterly of Broadway, West 215th Street, Broadway, and a northeasterly boundary line of a Park;
 - l. Indian Road, West 218th Street a line 150 feet southeasterly of Indian Road, and a line 100 feet southwesterly of West 218th Street;
 - m. a line 100 feet southeasterly of Tenth Avenue, West 206th Street, a line 100 feet northwesterly of Ninth Avenue, and a line midway between West 205th Street and west 206th Street; and
 - n. a line 100 feet southeasterly of Tenth Avenue, a line midway between West 204th Street and West 205th Street, a line 100 feet northwesterly of Ninth Avenue, and a line midway between West 203rd Street and West 204th Street;
- 3231 . establishing within a proposed R7D District a C2-4 District bounded by a line 100 feet northwesterly of Broadway, West 218th Street, Broadway, and West 215th Street;
- 3332 . establishing within a proposed R8 District a C2-4 District bounded by:
- a. a line 100 feet southeasterly of Ninth Avenue, the southwesterly street line of former West 208th Street*, the U.S. Pierhead and Bulkhead Line, and West 206th Street; and
 - b. Ninth Avenue, West 205th Street, the U.S. Pierhead and Bulkhead Line, and West 204th Street;

3433. establishing within a proposed R8A District a C2-4 District bounded by:

- a. Post Avenue, a line 100 feet northeasterly of West 207th Street, Tenth Avenue, and a line 100 feet southwesterly of West 207th Street;
- ba. a line 100 feet southeasterly of Tenth Avenue, West 207th Street, a line 180 feet southeasterly of Tenth Avenue, a line passing through a point at angle 35 degrees to the northeasterly street line of West 207th Street distant 180 feet southeasterly (as measured along the street line) from the point of intersection of the northeasterly street line of West 207th Street and the southeasterly street line of Tenth Avenue, a line 100 feet northwesterly of Ninth Avenue, and West 206th Street;
- eb. a line midway between West 205th Street and West 206th Street, a line 100 feet southeasterly of Tenth Avenue, West 203rd Street, and Tenth Avenue; and
- dc. a line 100 feet northwesterly of Ninth Avenue, West 206th Street, a line 100 feet southeasterly of Ninth Avenue, West 205th Street, Ninth Avenue, and West 203rd Street;

3534. establishing within a proposed R9A District a C2-4 District bounded by a line 100 feet northwesterly of Ninth Avenue, a line 100 feet northeasterly of 207th Street, Ninth Avenue, the southwesterly street line of former West 208th Street*, a line 100 feet southeasterly of Ninth Avenue, and West 206th Street; and

3635. establishing a Special Inwood District (IN) bounded by:

- a. Staff Street, Dyckman Street, Seaman Avenue, and a line 100 feet southwesterly of Dyckman Street; and
- b. a line 125 feet northwesterly of Broadway, Academy Street, a line 100 feet southeasterly of Cooper Street, West 204th Street, Broadway, the northeasterly boundary line of a Park (Dyckman House Park) and its southeasterly prolongation, a line 100 feet southeasterly of Cooper Street, West 207th Street, a line 125 feet northwesterly of Broadway, a line 100 feet northeasterly of West 207th Street, a line 150 feet southeasterly of Sherman Avenue, Isham Street, Sherman Avenue, a line 300 feet northeasterly of Isham Street, a line 100 feet northwesterly of Tenth Avenue, West 213th Street, Broadway, West 215th Street, a line midway between Park Terrace East and Broadway, West 218th Street, Broadway, the U.S. Pierhead and Bulkhead Line, the southeasterly prolongation of a line 22 feet northeasterly of the southwesterly street line of West 218th Street, Ninth Avenue, West 218th Street, Tenth Avenue, West 207th Street, a line 180 feet southeasterly of Tenth Avenue, a line passing through a point at angle 35 degrees to the northeasterly street line of West 207th Street distant 180 feet southeasterly (as measured along the street line) from the point of intersection of the northeasterly street line of West 207th Street and the southeasterly street line of Tenth Avenue, a line 100 feet northwesterly of Ninth Avenue, a line 100 feet northeasterly of West 207th Street, Ninth Avenue, the northeasterly street line of former West 208th Street*, the U.S. Pierhead and Bulkhead Line, West 206th Street, a line 100 feet southeasterly of Ninth Avenue, West 205th Street, the U.S. Pierhead and Bulkhead Line, the centerline of former Academy Street, West 201st Street, Tenth Avenue, a line 100 feet southwesterly of West 207th Street, a line midway between Vermilyea Avenue and Broadway, a

line 100 feet northeasterly of Dyckman Street, Nagle Avenue, a line 100 feet southwesterly of Dyckman Street, Broadway, and Dyckman Street;

as shown on a diagram (for illustrative purposes only) dated April 18, 2018, Community District 12, Borough of Manhattan.

Adopted.

Office of the City Clerk, }
The City of New York, } ss.:

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true copy of a Resolution passed by The Council of The City of New York on August 8, 2018, on file in this office.

City Clerk, Clerk of The Council